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JN THF. UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTllERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

UNITED ST J\ TES Or AMERICA. 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

IOW /\ SELECT HERBS, LLC, a corponuion, 
and 
GORDON L. FREEMAN und 
LOIS/\. DOTTERWEICll, individuals. 

Dcfondunts. 

CIVIL NO. I 5-cv-60 (rJM) 

CONSENT DECREE OF PERMANF.NT INJUNCTION 

PlaintifT, United States of America. by il~ undersigned attorneys having filed a Complaint 

for Permanent Injunction against Iowa Select Herbs, l .I .C ("Iowa Sek'Ct Herbs'' or the " firm''). a 

corporation. and Gordon L. Freeman and Lois A. Dotterweich (now known os Lois A. Freeman). 

individuals (collectively, "Defendants"), and Defendants having appeared und consented to the 

enll)' of this Decree without contest and before any testimon)' has been taken, and Plaintiff 

hav ing consented to this Decree; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUOGED. ANO DECREED us follows: 

I. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and has personal 

jurisdiction over all parties to this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1345 und 21 lJ.S.C. § 332. 

Venue is proper in this district under 21 U.S.C. § 1391 (b) and (c). 

2. The Complaint for Pem1anent Injunction states a cause of action against 

Defendants under the Federal Foud, Drug. und Cosmetic Act. 21 U.S.C. §§ 30 l-399f (lhe 

"Act"). 
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3. Defendants violate 21 lJ.S.C. § 331 (d). by introducing or delivering for 

introduction. und causing lo be introduced or delivered for introduction, into interstate commcn:c 

new drugs within the m~ning of2 I U.S.C. § 32 l(p) that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C. 

§ 355. nor exempt from approval. 

4. Defendants violate 21 lJ.S.C. § 331 (a), by introducing or delivering for 

introduction. and causing to be introduced or delivered for introduction, into interstate commerce 

urticles of drugs that arc misbranded within the meaning of2 I U.S.C. § 352(1)(1) in that their 

labeling fails to benr adequate directions for use. 

5. De fondants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331 (k), by causing drugs to become misbranded 

within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)( I), in that their labeling foils to bear adequate 

directions for use. while such drugs arc held for sale after shipment of one or more of their 

components in interstate commerce. 

6. Defendants violate 21 lJ.S.C. § 331 (a), by introducing or delivering, or causing to 

be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce die1ary supplements, as defined by 21 

U.S.C. § 321 (fl), that arc adulterated within the meaning of 21 lJ.S.C. § 342(g)( I), in that they 

have been prepared, packed, and held under conditions that do not comply with the current good 

manufacturing practice regulations for dietary supplements (''Dietary Supplement CGMP"), ill 

21 C.F.R. Part 111. and misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 343(s)(2)(C). in that their 

labeling fails to idenii(v the part of the plant from which each herb or botanical dietary ingredient 

is derived. 

7. Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331 (k), by causing dietary supplemcncs. as 

defined by 21 lJ.S.C. § 32 l(fl). to become adulterated within the meaning of2 I lJ.S.C. 

§ 342(g}( I). in thnt they have been prepared. packed, and held under conditions that do not 
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comply with the Dietary Supplement CGMP, ~ 21 C.F.R. Part 111, and mishrnnded within the 

meaning of 2.1 lJ.S.C. § 343(s)(2)(C), in that their labeling foils to identity the part of the pl~mt 

from which cuch herb or botanical dietnry ingredient is derived. while such articles are held l'i.)r 

sale atler shipment of one or more of their components in interstate commerce. 

8. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants represent to the Court thut they are not 

directly or indirectly engaged in manufacturing, processing, packing. labeling. holding, or 

distributing any dietary supplement, any product labeled as such, or any drug. If Defendants 

later intend to resume operations at 2347 Blairs Ferry Roud, NE, Suite 2, Cedar Rapids, Iowa 

52402, or any other location, Defendants must notify FDA in writing at least sixty (60) business 

days in advance of resuming operations and must comply with Paragraphs 9(A)·(F) and 9(11) of 

this Decree. This notice shall identify the typc(s) of dietary supplements Dcfondants intend to 

manufacture. process, pack, label. hold and/or distrihute, and the facility in which Oefendants 

intend to resume operations. Defendants shall not resume operations until Defendants have 

satisfied all of the conditions in Paragraphs 9{A)·(F), FDA has inspected Defendants' facility and 

operations pursuant to Paragraph 9(G). Defendants have paid the costs of such inspt.-ction(s) 

pursuant to Paragraph 9(11), and Defendants have received written notk4.! from FDA. as required 

by Paragraph 9(1), and then Defendants shall resume such diclary supplemenl operations only 10 

the extent authorized in fDA 's written notice. 

9. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants, and each and all of their directors. 

officers, agents, representatives. employees, attorneys, successors, assigns, and any and ull 

persons in active concen or punicipation with any of them who receive actual notice of this 

Decree by personal service or otherwise (collectively, .. Associated Persons"). are permanently 

restrained and enjoined under 21 U.S.C. § 332(a) and the equitable authorily of this Court. from 
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introducing or delivering for introduction, and/or causing to be introduced or delivered for 

introduction, into interstate commerce any drug or dietary supplement from or at the facility ut 

2347 ()luirs Ferry Roud. NE, Suite 2, Cedar Rapids, lowu and any other lo~:utions at which 

Ocfrndants now, or in the fi.lturc, directly or indirectly receive. prepare. process. manufacture. 

label. pack. hold. and/or distribute drugs or dietary supplements (collecth·cly, "Defendants' 

facility"), unless and until all of the following occur: 

A. Defendants have removed all claims from : (I) websites owned, controlled 

by, or relllled to DclCndunts. including the finn's website (www.storcs.iuwasclccthcrbs.com). 

Defendants' Facebook pagc(s). any future website created by Defendants. and Defendants' 

postings on c()ay. Amazon. and other on line marketplace websites (collectively. "Dcfondants' 

websites"); (2) other product labeling and promotional materials, including videos; and (3) any 

other media; 

B. Defendants retuin, at Defendants' expense, an independent person or 

persons (the ''Labeling Expert"). who is without personal, linuncinl (olher than the consulting 

agreement between the parties). or familial lies to Defendants and their fomilies. and who by 

reason of background, experience, education, and training, is quulilicd to assess Defendants' 

comp I iance with the Act and to review the claims Defendants make for each of their products on 

Defondants' websites, product labeling and promotional materials. and any other media. 

Defendants shall notify FDA in writing of the identity and qualitkntions of the Labeling Expert 

as soon as they retain such expert. At the conclusion of tlu.: Lubcling Expert '.s review. the 

Labeling Expert shall prepare a written report anuly;dng whether l>e fcndunts arc operating in 

compliance with the Act. applicable regulations. and this Decree. The Labeling Expert shall also 

certify in the report whether (I} Defendants have omitted claims that cause any of Defendants' 
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products to be dnags within the meaning of the Acl, 21 U.S.C. § 32 l(g). from De fondants' 

wehsitcs. product labeling nnd promolional materials, and any other media; (2) Defendants have 

revised their labeling to ensure that the labeling on ull dielary supplement<> is in compliance with 

the Act, applicable regulations. und this Oecrce; and (3) if Defendants make any health claims 

about their products, Defondants only make permitted health claims that comport with the 

requirements of2 I C.F.R. §§ IOl.70- 83. The report shall include the specific rcsuhs of the 

Labeling Expert's review, including rcforences to product names and regulations addressed in 

the process of conducling the review. The report shall also include copies of ull materials 

reviewed by the Labeling Expert. The Labeling Expert shall submit this report concurrently to 

Defendants and FDA no later than twenty (20) calendar days after completing this review: 

C. Defendants re1ain, at Defendants' expense, an independent person or 

persons (the ;;Dietary Supplement CGMP ~xpert"), who is without personal, financial (other 

than the consulling agrc..-emenl between the parties), or fnmilial tics to Defendants or their 

families, and who by reason of background, experience. education, and training, is qualified to 

inspect Defendants' facility to dclermine whelher the facility, melhods, processes, and conlrols 

arc operated and adminislcred in confonnily with Diclary Supplement CGMP, 21 C.F.R. Pan 

111. Defendants, if appropriate, muy retain as the Dietary Supplemenl CGMP Expert lhe same 

independent party they retain as lhe Lahcling Expert. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing of 

lhe identity and qualifications of lhc Dietary Supplement CG~P Expert as soon as they retain 

such expert; 

L>. The Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert performs a 1.:omprehcnsivc 

inspec1ion of Defendants' facility and the methods and controls used to manufacture. prepare. 

pack. label, hold, and distribute dietary supplements, and certify in writing to FDA 1hat (I) he or 
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she has inspected Defendants' facility, methods, processes, and controls; und (2) whether 

Defendants' operations arc, in the Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert's opinion, in compliance 

with 21 lJ.S.C. § 342(g)(l ), 21 C.F.R. Part 111, nnd this Decrte. The Dietary Supplement 

CGMP Expert's report of the inspection shall be submitted concum:ntly to Defendants and FDA 

no luter thun twenty (20) calendar days after he or she completes the inspection. This report shall 

include, but not be limited lo, the following: 

I. A determination as to whether f)efondnnts prepare and 

continuously follow a written muster manufacturing record for ench unique dietary supplement 

formulation of each product manufactured and for each batch size, as required by 21 C.F.R. 

§ I I 1.205. and whether Defendants include all required information in the master manufacturing 

record. as required by 21 C.F .R. § 111.21 O; 

2. An evaluation ac; to whether Defendants continuously comply with 

the regulations regarding batch records and batch production, as spec ified in 21 C.F.R. 

§§ 111.255 un<l 111 .260; 

3. A determination us to whether Defendants huve established 

spccificntions, as required by 2·1 C.F.R. § 111.70, and whether those specifications are 

continuously met as required by 21· C.F .R. § 11 I. 73; 

4. A dctennination as to whether Defondants have established written 

procedures for calibrnting, maintaining, and cleaning equipment and utensils; preventing 

microbial contamination of dietary supplements; and e!>1ablishing hygienic practices at the tinn. 

as required by 21 C.F.R. §§ 111.25, 11 1.8, 111.IO(u). and 111.IO(b); 

5. A determination as to whether Defendants adequately detem1inc 

and document that the products they receive from their supplierli meet speci fications, as required 
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by 21 C.F.R. § 111. 75; 

6. A dctennination as to whether Defendants continuously comply 

with the procedures and requirements for quality control operations, as required by 21 C.17.R. 

§ 111.123: 

7. A determination as to whether Defendants establish and 

continuously follow written procedures specifying the responsibi lities of their quality control 

operations. as required by 21C.F.R.§111.103; 

8. A determination as to whether Defi.:ndants hold reserve samples in 

the same container-closure system in which the packaged dietary supplement is distributed, as 

required by 21 C.F.R. § I l I .83(b )(I); and 

9. A detennination as to whether Defendants have established and 

follow written procedures for (I ) product complaints.~ 21 C.F .R. §§ 111.553-111.570; (2) 

returned dietary supplements,~ 21 C.F.R. §§ 111.503- 111.535: (3) holding and distributing 

operations,~ 21 C.F.R. §§ 111.453- 111.475; and (4) packaging and labeling operations, sec 21 

C.F.R. §§ 111.403-430. 

E. Should the Labeling Expert or Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert 

(collectively, ·'Experts") identify any deficiencies in their reports as described in Paragraphs 9(B) 

and 9(0): 

I. Defendants shall report lo FDA and the Experts in writing the 

actions they have taken to correct all such deficiencies; and 

2. The Experts shall certify in writing to FDA, based upon the 

Experts' further review and/or inspection(s), whether (I) Defendants have omitted all claims that 

cause any of Defendants' products to be drugs within the meaning of the Act, 21 U.S.C. 
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§ 321 (g), from Defendants' websites, product labeling und promotional materials, and any other 

media; (2) Defendants have updated their labeling to ensure that the labeling on all dietary 

supplements is in compliance with 21 U.S.C. § 343(s)(2)(C); (3) Defendants only make 

pcnnitte-0 health claims that comport with the requirements of 21 c...-.R. ~§ 101.70-83 if 

Dcfondants make any health claims about their products; and (4) Defendants' facility and the 

methods, processes, nnd controls used to manufacture, prepare, pack.. lahel. hold, distribute. and 

promote their drug and dietary supplement products appear to be in compliance with the Act, its 

implementing regulations, and this Decree; 

F. Defendants recall and destroy, under FDA 's supervision and in accordance 

with the procedures provided in Paragraph 11, all of Defendants· products that were 

manufactured, prepared, packed, labeled, held, and/or distributed between January I. 2015, and 

the date of entry of this Decree; 

G. FDA representatives inspect Defendants' facility to dctcnninc whether the 

requirements of this Dc.'Crcc have been met and whether Defendants ;arc operating in conformity 

with the Act, its implementing regulations, and this Decree; 

H. Defendants have paid all costs of FL>A 's supervision, inspections. 

investigations. analyses, examinations, and reviews with respect to Paragraph 9. at the rates set 

forth in Paragraph 17 below; and 

I. fDA notifies Defendants in writing that Defendants appear to be in 

compliance with the requirements set forth in Pamgruphs 9(A}-(l-I). In no circumstance shall 

fDA 's silence be construed as a substitute for writlcn notification. 

10. Paragraph 9 shall not apply if Defendants have in efTect an approved new drug 

application or abbreviated new drug application filed pursuant to 21 lJ.S.C. § 355(b) or (j). 
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and/or an investigational new dmg exemption filed pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 355(i) is in effect for 

all of OefendanL-;' products, and lkfcndants are opcr..iting in compl iam:c with current good 

manufacturing pmctices for drugs. Sec 21 C.f'.R. Parts 210 and 211 . 

11 . Within thirty (30) calendar days after entry of this Decrl.-e, Defendants shall recall 

all drugs and dietary supplements manufactured, prepared, packed. or labeled by Defendants that 

were held und/or distributed between January I, 2015, and the date or entry of this Decree. 

Within scvcnt)'·fivc (75) calendar days after the entry of lhis Decree. Defendants. under FDA ·s 

supervision, shall destroy ull of the recalled drugs and diclary supplements and all drugs and 

dietary supplements that arc in Defendants' possession, custody, or control, pursuant to a method 

approved in advance in writing by FDA. After this destruction. if Defendants receive any drugs 

or dietary supplements that they manufactured, prepared, packed, labeled, held. and/or 

distribuled between August 25, 2014, and the date of entry of this Decree, Defendants shall 

destroy such drugs and/or dietary supplements, under fDA 's supervision and pursuant to a 

method approved in advance in writing by fDA, within forty-five (45) cah:ndar days after 

Defendants receive such products. Defendants shall bear the costs of destruction and, at the rates 

set forth in Paragraph 17, the costs of 17DA 's supervision. D1:fondants shall not dispose of any 

dnigs or dietary supplements in a manner contrary to the provisions of the Act. any other federal 

law, or the laws of any State or Territory, as defined in the Act, in which the drugs or dietary 

supplements un: disposed. 

12. Afier Defendants have complied with Paragraphs 9(A)- (H) and received FDA's 

written notification pursuant to Paragraph 9(1), lkfcndants shall retain an independent person or 

persons who shall meet the crileria described in Paragraphs 9(8) and 9(C) (hereinaller, the 

.. Auditor .. ) to conduct audit inspections of Defendants' facil ity no les.1> frequently than once 
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every six (6) months for a period of no less than three (3) years. and then no less than once a year 

for the following two (2) years. The first audit shall occur not more than six (6) months after 

Ocfendants have received FDA 's written notHication pursuant to Paragrnph 9(1). If Dcfondunts 

choose. the Auditor may be the same person or persons retained as the Labeling Expert or 

Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert described in Paragraphs 9(13) and (C). 

A. At the condusion of each audit inspection, the Auditor shall prepare a 

detailed written audit report (''Audit Report") analyzing whether Defendants arc in compliance 

with Dietary Supplement CGMP for their dietary supplement operations and identifying uny 

deviations from such requirements ("Audit Report Observations"). 

13. Each Audit Report shall contain a wrincn certification thut the Auditor: 

(a) has personally reviewed Dctendants' websites, product labeling and promotional materials, 

and any other media containing claims about Defendants' products; and (b) personally certifies 

whether there arc claims that cause any of Defondants' products to be dnigs within the meaning 

of the Act, 21 lJ.S.C. § 321 (g), and whether Defendants are in compliance with the requirements 

of the Act, its regulations, and this Dc1.:rcc. 

C. As a part of every Audit Report, the Auditor shall assess the adequacy of 

corrective actions taken by Defendants to correct all previous Audit Report observations. The 

Audit Reports shall be delivered contemporaneously to Defendants and FOJ\ 's Kansas Cily 

District Oflice, at the address provided in Paragraph 20 by courier service or overnight delivery 

service. no later than fifteen ( 15) business days after the date the Audit Inspection is completed. 

In addition, Defondants shall maintain their Audit Reports in separate files at Defondan1s' facility 

and shall promptly make the Audit Reports available to FDA upon request. 

D. l fan Audit Report contains any observations indicating that Defendants' 
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drugs and/or dietary supplements are not in complirmcc with the Act, its impkmcnting 

regulations, und/or this Decree, Dcfcndunts shall, within fificcn (I 5) calendur days of receipt of 

the Audit Report, correcl those observations, unless Fl>A notifies Defendants that a shorter time 

period is necessary. If, nfler rC\:eiving the Audit Repon. Defendants believe that correction of 

the deviations may lake longer than fifteen ( 15) calendar days, Defendants shall. within ten (I 0) 

calendar days of receipl of lhc Audit Report, submit to FOA in writing a proposed schedule for 

completing corrections (''Audit Correction Schedule"). The Audit Correction Schedule must be 

reviewed and appro\'cd by FDA in writing prior to implementation by Defendants. Jn no 

circumstance, shall FDA 's silence be construed as a substitute for written approval. Dcfondants 

shall complete all corrections according to the approved Audi! Correction Schedule. 

E. Immediately upon correction. Defendants shall submit documentation of 

their corrections to the Auditor. Within thirty (30) calendar days after lhe Auditor' s receipt of 

Defendants' documentation of corrections, unless FOA noti lies Defendants that u shorter time 

period is O\..'Cessury, or within the time period provided in a correction schedule approved by 

FDA, the Auditor shall review the actions taken by Dctendants to correct the Audit Report 

Observations. Within five (5) business days after beginning that review, the Auditor shall report 

in writing to rDA whether each of the Audit Report Observations has been corrected and, if not. 

which Audit Report Observations remain uncorrected. 

13. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants, and each and all of their directors, 

officers, agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors, assigns, and any and all 

persons in active concert or participation with any of them who receive uctual notice of this 

Decree by personal service or otherwise (collectively. "Asstlciatcd Persons") nn: permanently 

restrained and enjoined from directly or indirectly doing or causing any of the following acts: 
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A. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 33 l(d), by introducing or delivering, or causing 10 

be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce new drugs within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 

§ 32 l(p) that arc neither approved pursuant to 21 lJ.S.C. § 3SS, nor ex1:mpt from approval; 

B. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 331 (a), by introducing or delivering, or causing to 

be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce drugs that are misbranded within the 

meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352( f)( l ), dietary supplemenL'> that arc adulterated within the meaning of 

21 U.S.C. § 342(g)(I ). and/or dietary supplements that arc misbranded within the meaning of 21 

U.S.C. § 343(s)(2)(C); or 

C. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 33 l(k), by causing drugs to become misbranded 

within the meaning of2 I U.S.C. § 352(f)( I), dietary supplements to become adulterated within 

the meaning of 21 U .S.C. § 342(g)( I), and/or dietary supplements to become misbranded within 

the meaning of21 lJ.S.C. § 343(s)(2)(C), while such articles are held for sale after shipment of 

one or more of their components in interstate commerce. 

14. If. al any time after this Decree hns been entered, FDA determines, based on a 

review of inspection results, Defondants' websites, product labeling and promotional materials, 

any olhcr media containing claims about Defendants' products, a report prepared by Defendants' 

Experts or the Auditor, or any other information, that Defendants have failed lo comply with any 

provision of this Decree, have violated the Act or its implementing regulations, or that additional 

corrective actions arc necessary to achieve compliance with rhc Act, applicable regulations. 

and/or this Decree, FDA may, as and when it deems necessary, notify Defendants in writing of 

the noncompliance and order Defendants to take appropriate corrective action, including, but nor 

limited to, ordering Oefendants to immediately lake one or more of the following actions: 

A. Cease manufacturing, processing. packing, labeling. holding. and/or 
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distributing any or all drugs and/or dietary supplements; 

0. Revise, modify, expand, or continue to submit uny reports or plans 

prcpar< .. '<l pursuant to this Decree; 

C. Submit additional reports or infom1ation to FL>A as requested; 

D. l'ay liquidated damages as provided in Paragraph 21 below: 

E. Recall any article(s) at Defendantc;' expense; or 

F. Take any other corrective action(s) as FDA. in its discretion, deems 

necessary to bring Defendants and their products into compliance with the Act, applicable 

regulations, and/or this Decree. This remedy shall be separate and apart from, and in addition to, 

any other remedy available to the United States under this Decree or under the law. 

G. Upon receipt of any order issued by 1-'PA pursuant to Paragraph 14, 

Defendants shall immediately and fully comply with the tenns of the order. Any cessation of 

operations or other action described in Paragraph 14 shall continue until Defendants receive 

written notification from FDA thut Dcfcndunts appear to be in complkmce with this Decree, the 

Act, and its implementing regulations, and that L>cfcndants may resume opcrntions. The cost of 

FDA inspections, sampling. testing. travel time, and subsistence expenses to implement the 

remedies set forth in Parugruph 14 shall be bome by Defendants at the rates specified in 

Paragraph 17. 

15. Within ten (10) calendar days afier FDA 's request for Defendants' websites, 

product labeling and promotional materials, and any other media containing claims about 

De fondants' products, Defendants shall submit a copy of the requested materials (in hard copy 

or. if appropriate, on CD-Rom) to FDA at the address spc.-cifled in Paragraph 20. 

16. FDA representatives shall be pennitted, without prior notice and as and when 
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FDA deems ncccssury, to mukc inspections of Dcfondunts' focilitics and, without prior notice, 

take any other measures necessary to monitor und ensure continuing compliance with the terms 

of this Decree. During such inspections, FDA representatives shall be permitted immediate 

access to buildings. equipment. in-process and finished materials, containers, Oclcndants' 

websites, product labeling and promotional mutcrials. and any other media containing claims 

about Defendants' products, and other materials therein; to take photographs und make video 

recordings; to take samples of Dcfondants' finished and unfinished materials und products, 

containers, Defendanlc;' websites, product lnbeling and promotional materials. and any other 

media containing claims about DcfcndanLo;' products; and to examine and copy all labeling and 

promotional materials and all records relating to the receipt. manufacture. processing. packing. 

holding, and distribution of any and all of De fondants· products. The inspections shall be 

pcm1ittcd upon presentation of a copy of this Decree and appropriate credentials. The inspection 

authority granted by this Decree is separate from, and in uddition to, the authority to conduct 

inspections under the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 374. 

17. Defendants shall reimburse FDA for the costs of all FDA inspections. 

investigations, supervision, reviews. examinations, and analyses specified in this Decree or that 

f-DA deems necessary to evaluate Dcfondants' compliance with this Decree. For the purposes of 

this Decree, inspections include FDA 's review and analysis of Defendants' claims on 

Defendants' websites, product labeling and promotional materials. and any other media 

containing claims about De fondants' products. The costs of such inspections shall be borne by 

DefendanL'> at the prevailing rates in eff~-ct at the time the costs arc incurred. As of the date that 

this Decree is signed by the parties, these rates are: $89.35 per hour and fraction thereof per 

representative for inspection work; SI07.09 per hour or fraction thereof per representative for 
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analytical or review work; $0.575 per mile for travel expenses by automobile; government n1tc 

or the equivalent for travel by air or other means; and the published government per diem rate or 

1he equivalent for the areas in which the inspections arc performed per.Jay. per-representative 

for subsistence expenses, where necessary. In the event that lhe standard r.tlcs applicable to 

FDA supervision of court-ordered compliance are modified. these rates shall be increased or 

decreased without further order of the Court. 

18. Within ten (IO) calendur days after the entry of this Decree, Defendants shall 

provide u copy of this Decree, by personal service or certiliec..1 mail (restricted delivery, return 

receipt requested), to each and all of their J\ssociatl.'d Persons, and post the Decree on all of 

Defendants' websites (except for third-party online marketplace websites such as eBay and 

Amazon). Within thirty (30) calendar days after the entry of this Decree. Defendants shall 

provide to FDA an affidavit of compliance, slating the foci and manner of compliance with the 

provisions of this Paragraph and identifying the names and positions of all Associated Persons 

who have received a copy of this Decree and the manner of notification. In the event that 

Defendants become associated. at any time nfier the entry of this D<..-crcc. with new Associated 

Persons, Defendants shall: (a) within fifteen ( 15) calendar days of such association, provide a 

copy of this Decree to each such Associutcd Person by personal service or certified mail 

(restricted delivery, return receipt requested), and (b) on a quarterly basis. notify FDA in writing 

when, how, and to whom the Decree was provided. 

19. Defendants shall notify FDA, in writing, at the address specified in Paragraph 20, 

at least fifteen (15) calendarc.Jays before any change in ownership, character, or name of its 

business, such as dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the emergence of a successor 

corporation, the crca1ion or dissolution of subsidiaries, franchises. alliliatcs. or ''doing business 
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as" entities, or any other change in the corpor.llc structure of Iowa Sck.-ct Herbs or in the sale or 

assignment of any business nssets, such us buildings, equipment, or inventory. that may affect 

compliance with this D<.:crec. Defendants shall provide a copy of this Occrce to any potential 

successor or assignee at least fifteen ( 15) calendar days before any sale or assignment. 

Defendants shall furnish fDA with an affidavit of compliance with this Paragraph no Inter than 

ten (I 0) calendar days prior to such assignment or change in ownership. 

20. All notifications, certifications, reports, correspondence. and other 

communications to FDA required by this Decree shall be addresscu to the District Din.-ctor, 

Kansas City District Office, United States Food and Drug Administration, 8050 Marshall Drive, 

Suite 205, Lenexa. Kansas 66214, and shall reference the case name and civil action number. 

2 1. If Defendants fail to comply with the Act. its implementing regulations, and/or 

any provision of this Decree, including any time frnmc imposed by this Decree, Defendants shall 

pay to the United States of America: (a) five thousund dollars ($5,000) in liquidated damages for 

each violation of lhe Acl, its implementing regulations, and/or this 0(cree; (b) an additional fi ve 

hundred dollars ($500) in liquidated damages per day, per violation, for each violation of the 

Act, its implementing regulations, and/or this Decree; and (c) an additional sum in liquidated 

damages equal to twice the retail value of any distributed drugs or dietary supplements that arc 

udulterah.-d, misbranded, or otherwise in violation of the Act, its implementing regulations, 

and/or this Decree. Defendants understand and agree that the liquidated damages sp1..-cilicd in 

this Paragraph are not punitive in nature, and the rcmc:dy in this Paragraph shall be in addition to 

any other remedies available to the United States under this Decree or the law. 

22. Should the United Stutes bring, and prevail in. a contempt action to enforce the 

tenns of this Decree, Defendants shall, in addition to other remed ies, reimburse the United States 
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for its attorneys' fees, invcstigational expenses, expert witness fees, travel expenses im;urrcd by 

attorneys and witnesses, and administrative court costs relating to such contempt proceedings. 

23. All decisions specified in this Decree shall be vested in the discretion ofFDA and 

shall be final. If contested, FDA 's decisions under this Decree shall be reviewed by the Court 

under the arbitrary and capricious standard set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Review shall be 

based exclusively on the written record before FDA at the time the decision was made. No 

discovery shall be taken by either party. 

24. This Court retains jurisdiction of this action for the purpose of enforcing or 

modifying this Decree and for the purpose of granting such additional relief as may be necessary 

or appropriate. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Dated lhis fl day of 4jJ , 2015. 

~J..9ht~ / 
UNITED S~ES DISTRICT JUDGE 
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Entry consented to: 

FO[R O,EFdi=ENDANT~ 
~ ' 

d 4=_L~~ . · ----.__ 

.· 
' 

GORDON L. FREEMAN, individually 
and on behalf of 10\V A SELF.CT 
HERBS, U .C 

__,._-.. .:-.~t 
OIS A. DOTTER WEICH 

(now known as LOIS A . 
. FREEMAN), individually 

G(#i~Jiu!l{kt?f 
Counsel for Defendants 
Shuttleworth & Ingersoll, P.L.C. 
11 S 3nl Street, SE Suite 500 
Cedar Rapids, IA 5240 I 
(319) 365·9461 
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FOR PLA lNTIFF 

KEVIN W. TECllAU 
United States Attorney 

JACOH SCHUNK 
Assistant U.S. Anomey 
U.S. Courthouse 
111 7th Avenue. S.E .. Box # I 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52401-1825 
(319) 731-4030 

Trial Attorney 
Consumer Protection Branch 
Civil Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
4 50 Fifth Street. N. \V .. 
Sixth Floor, South 
Washington, D.C. 20001 
(202) 532-4882 

OFCOUNSl::L: 

WILLIAM B. SCHULTZ 
General Counsel 

ELIZAl3ETH H. DICKINSON 
Chief Counsel 
Food und Drug Division 

PF.RI IAM GORJI 
Deputy Chief Counsel, Litigation 

I.AURA J. AKOWUAH 
Associate Chief Counsel for 
Enforcement 
United States Dcpanment of Heallh 
and Human Services 
Otlice of the General Counsel 
I 0903 New I lampshire Ave. 
Silver Spring, MD 20993-0002 
(30 I) 796-7912 




